
 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the number of people in attendance at the 

meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the public exceeds the legal limits.  The meeting cannot be closed to the public 
except by a majority vote of a quorum present for the meeting.  The board can vote to go into an executive session on a legally exempt matter during a 

public meeting even if not advertised or listed on the agenda.  Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them 

to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities are required to contact the 
ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting at 706-485-2776 to allow the County to make reasonable 

accommodations for those persons. 

 

Page 1 of 1 

PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 
 

Agenda 

Tuesday, March 21, 2023 ◊ 6:00 PM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

 

Opening 
1. Welcome - Call to Order 

2. Approval of Agenda 

3. Invocation - Pastor Craig Williamson, First Baptist Eatonton 

4. Pledge of Allegiance (BS) 

5. Special Presentation - GMC Cadets - Operation Pick Up Putnam 

 

Zoning Public Hearing 
6. Request by Gerald West Jr., agent for Nell J. McDonald, to rezone 5.31 acres at 331 New Phoenix Road 

from AG to C-2 [Map 105, Parcel 016, District 1] (staff-P&D) Applicant is requesting to withdraw 

without prejudice. 

 

Regular Business Meeting 
7. Public Comments 

8. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes - March 3, 2023 Regular Meeting (staff-CC) 

b. Approval of Minutes - March 3, 2023 Executive Session (staff-CC) 

c. Approval of 2023 Alcohol Licenses (staff-CC) 

9. Authorization for Chairman to sign Resolution for Hazard Mitigation Plan 2022-2027 (PCSO) 

10. Rescheduling or Cancellation of April 7, 2023 BOC Meeting due to Good Friday Holiday (staff-CC) 

11. Request from Kevin Price/Liberty Marts LLC for Final Plat Subdivision Approval (staff-P&D) 

12. Request by Tri-County EMC for a Right-of-Way Permit for work on Dennis Station Road (staff-PW) 

13. Authorization for staff to schedule a Public Hearing on proposed changes to the Putnam County Code of 

Ordinances (Chapter 66 - Zoning) (staff-CA/P&D) 

14. Termination of Agreement with Corporate Health Partners (staff-CM) 

15. Approval of 2023 LMIG Projects (staff-CM) 

16. Approval to transfer the Lower Harmony/Bethel Church waterline to EPWSA and authorization for 

County Attorney to draft agreement (staff-CM) 

 

Reports/Announcements 
17. County Manager Report 

18. County Attorney Report 

19. Commissioner Announcements 

 

Closing 
20. Adjournment 

1



File Attachments for Item:

6. Request by Gerald West Jr., agent for Nell J. McDonald, to rezone 5.31 acres at 331 New Phoenix 

Road from AG to C-2 [Map 105, Parcel 016, District 1] (staff-P&D) Applicant is requesting to withdraw 

without prejudice.

2



Request by Gerald West Jr., agent for Nell J. McDonald, to rezone 5.31 acres at 331 New Phoenix Road 
from AG to C-2 [Map 105, Parcel 016, District 1] (staff-P&D) Applicant is requesting to withdraw 

without prejudice.  
 

PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT-LISA JACKSON STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Mr. West is requesting to rezone the property on behalf of Nell McDonald. If approved, he would like to purchase the 

5.31-acre lot and develop it. As stated in the letter of intent and concept plan, the applicant is proposing to rezone 
the property to have an open parking yard for trailers, boats, recreational vehicles, and place an ice machine there 

for the public. The remaining land will remain as is, for possible future development.  
 
The subject property is located at the intersection of New Phoenix and Old Phoenix and is directly adjacent to one C-

1 parcel and one residential use parcel. It is located less than 100 feet from a growing residential neighborhood with 
over 120 residential homes, which is directly adjacent to the future location of a new residential development. 

Although the proposed use is consistent with the purpose of the C-2 zoning district, it is not suitable in the view of 
the development of the nearby and adjacent properties. A C-2 zoning approval allows for outside display and other 
uses that are not conducive to this area. There is only 1 C-2 zoned parcel on Old Phoenix and it is located at the 

intersection of Highway 44 and Old Phoenix Road. A C-2 zoning approval could adversely affect the existing use, 
value, or usability of the surrounding properties. According to the submitted traffic analysis, the level of service of 

any controlled movement, with a volume to capacity that is greater than 1, experienced insufficient gaps that are an 
acceptable size to allow vehicles to pass through without experiencing delays. There is more traffic on Old Phoenix 

Road, which is the main connector between Georgia State Route 16 and Highway 44. In addition to the traffic, the 
Future Land Use Comprehensive Plan has this parcel projected as agriculture and the surrounding parcels as both 
agriculture and residential use. The proposed C-2 zoning could possibly impact and create congestion at this 

intersection. This property can be used as it is currently zoned, however agriculture is not a marketable zoning for 
this specific area. This area has seen a large improvement in residential use, for this reason, rezoning this parcel to 

C-1 would be more neighborhood friendly and reflect the adjacent C-1 parcel. Therefore, staff recommendation is 
for denial to rezone 5.31 acres from AG to C-2. The applicant is requesting to withdraw without prejudice. 
Staff recommendation is for approval to withdraw without prejudice at 331 New Phoenix Road from AG 

to C-2. [Map 105, Parcel 016, District 1]. 
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The Planning & Zoning Commission’s recommendation is for approval to withdraw without prejudice at 331 New 

Phoenix Road from AG to C-2. [Map 105, Parcel 016, District 1]. 

3



 

4



 

5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



File Attachments for Item:

8. Consent Agenda

a. Approval of Minutes - March 3, 2023 Regular Meeting (staff-CC)

b. Approval of Minutes - March 3, 2023 Executive Session (staff-CC)

c. Approval of 2023 Alcohol Licenses (staff-CC)

39



Draft Minutes Page 1 of 6  

March 3, 2023   

 

PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 
 

Minutes 

Friday, March 3, 2023 ◊ 10:00 AM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

 

The Putnam County Board of Commissioners met on Friday, March 3, 2023 at approximately 

10:00 AM in the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, Room 203, 

Eatonton, Georgia. 

 

PRESENT  

Chairman Bill Sharp 

Commissioner Gary McElhenney 

Commissioner Daniel Brown 

Commissioner Alan Foster 

Commissioner Jeff Wooten 

 

STAFF PRESENT 

County Attorney Adam Nelson 

County Manager Paul Van Haute 

County Clerk Lynn Butterworth 

 

 

Opening 
1. Welcome - Call to Order 

Chairman Sharp called the meeting to order at approximately 10:00 a.m. 

(Copy of agenda made a part of the minutes on minute book page __________.) 

 

2. Approval of Agenda 

Motion to approve the Agenda. 

Motion made by Commissioner Foster, Seconded by Commissioner Wooten. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Foster, 

Commissioner Wooten 
 

3. Invocation 

Pastor Pete Mattix, Lake Country Baptist Church, gave the invocation. 

 

4. Pledge of Allegiance (BS) 

Chairman Sharp led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

 

40



Draft Minutes Page 2 of 6  

March 3, 2023   

 

Regular Business Meeting 
5. Public Comments 

Mr. Don Cottrell commented on turning 90 and told a joke. 

 

6. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes - February 21, 2023 Regular Meeting (staff-CC) 

b. Approval of Minutes - February 21, 2023 Executive Session (staff-CC) 

c. Approval of Revised Putnam County Transit Procurement Manual (staff-Transit) 

d. Approval of 2023 Alcohol Licenses (staff-CC) 

Motion to approve the Consent Agenda. 

Motion made by Commissioner McElhenney, Seconded by Commissioner Foster. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Foster, 

Commissioner Wooten 

(Copy of procurement manual and alcohol license made a part of the minutes on minute book 

pages __________ to __________.) 

 

7. Approval of 2024 Budget and 2023 Mill Rate Schedule (staff-Finance) 

Motion to approve the 2024 Budget and 2023 Mill Rate Schedule. 

Motion made by Commissioner Foster, Seconded by Commissioner Wooten. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Foster, 

Commissioner Wooten 
(Copy of schedule made a part of the minutes on minute book page __________.) 

 

8. Awarding of Solicitation #23-36001-001 Ambulance (Two) (staff-EMS) 

EMS Director Brad Murphey reviewed bid (only one bid received) and explained the current 

status of ambulances on order; they should arrive in another 4-5 months.  He further advised it 

would be the 2nd or 3rd quarter of 2024 before we would receive these two.  The total bid 

amount for two ambulances is $534,376.00.  County Manager Van Haute advised that these 

would be paid for out of SPLOST 9. 

Motion to award Solicitation #23-36001-001 to Custom Truck Body Works for two 

Ambulances at a total of $534,376.00. 

Motion made by Commissioner McElhenney, Seconded by Commissioner Wooten. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Foster, 

Commissioner Wooten 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

41



Draft Minutes Page 3 of 6  

March 3, 2023   

 

9. Approval of Short Term Rental Study Committee Roster (tabled from last meeting) 

a. Rescind January 6, 2023 motion forming Short Term Vacation Rental Study Committee 

and disband committee 

County Attorney Nelson explained that for records purposes, the cleanest action is to rescind the 

January 6, 2023 action and start over. 

Mr. Rick Brantley commented on his service on the STR study committee and how he felt it 

wasn’t balanced or representative of Putnam County.  He also commented on his negative 

experiences with short term rentals and the number of calls he received from others that were 

unhappy with short term rentals.  He urged the board to disband the committee and place a 

moratorium on short term rentals. 

Mr. Mark Willett commented that he owns a short term rental house in Great Waters and has 

never received any complaints from any of the neighbors, nor has law enforcement ever been 

called.  He also commented that it is frustrating to short term rental owners for this to keep 

coming up, that short term rentals are a huge income to the county and have no effect on the 

school system. 

Motion to rescind the January 6, 2023 motion forming the Short Term Vacation Rental 

Study Committee and disband the committee. 

Motion made by Commissioner Wooten, Seconded by Commissioner Brown. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Foster, 

Commissioner Wooten 
 

10. Approval to schedule a series of two special called meetings to obtain input from the public 

and stakeholders on potential changes to the Putnam County Short Term Vacation Rental 

Ordinance (AF) 

Motion to schedule two special called meetings to obtain input from the public and 

stakeholders on potential changes to the Putnam County Short Term Vacation Rental 

Ordinance with one being a day meeting and one an evening meeting, to be scheduled by 

staff. 

Motion made by Commissioner Foster, Seconded by Commissioner Wooten. 

 

Amended motion to schedule two Town Hall meetings to obtain input from the public and 

stakeholders on potential changes to the Putnam County Short Term Vacation Rental 

Ordinance, one at the Harmony Fire Station hosted by Vice Chairman/Commissioner 

Brown on March 14 at 6PM and one at the Twin Bridges Fire Station hosted by Chairman 

Sharp on March 23 at 6PM. 

Amended motion made by Commissioner Brown, Seconded by Commissioner McElhenney. 

 

After discussion, Commissioner Brown withdrew his amended motion; the second concurred. 

 

Voting Yea on the original motion: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, 

Commissioner Foster, Commissioner Wooten 

 

 

 

 

 

42



Draft Minutes Page 4 of 6  

March 3, 2023   

 

11. Approval of Moratorium on Variances (staff-P&D/CA) 

County Attorney Nelson reviewed the proposed resolution and moratorium and advised that one 

change was needed to the resolution, to change the effective time from 11 a.m. to 12 p.m. 

Motion to approve the Moratorium on Variances and authorize the Chairman to sign the 

Resolution with the change requested by the County Attorney. 

Motion made by Commissioner McElhenney, Seconded by Commissioner Brown. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Foster, 

Commissioner Wooten 

(Copy of resolution made a part of the minutes on minute book page __________.) 

 

Reports/Announcements 
12. County Manager Report 

County Manager Van Haute reported the following: 

 GDOT LMIG estimates were distributed to the board; almost $1.5M in projects needs to 

go down to $950K – this will be on the next agenda 

 After 18 months of waiting the new audio visual equipment has arrived and will be 

installed soon 

 Employee medical insurance renewal numbers were received with a $170K increase; 

looking at cost savings by eliminating the program with Corporate Health Partners and 

reducing the Brella insurance – this will be on the next agenda 

 

13. County Attorney Report 

No report, but Executive Session needed for Litigation and Real Estate 

 

14. Commissioner Announcements 

Commissioner McElhenney: none 

 

Commissioner Brown: none 

 

Commissioner Foster: none 

 

Commissioner Wooten: none 

 

Chairman Sharp: none 

 

Executive Session 
15. Enter Executive Session as allowed by O.C.G.A. 50-14-4 for Personnel, Litigation, or Real 

Estate 

Motion to enter Executive Session as allowed by O.C.G.A. 50-14-4 for Litigation and Real 

Estate. 

Motion made by Commissioner Foster, Seconded by Commissioner Brown. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Foster, 

Commissioner Wooten 

 

 

Meeting closed at approximately 10:47 a.m. 

43



Draft Minutes Page 5 of 6  

March 3, 2023   

 

 

 

16. Reopen meeting following Executive Session 

Motion to reopen the meeting. 

Motion made by Commissioner Wooten, Seconded by Commissioner Brown. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Foster, 

Commissioner Wooten 

 

 

Meeting reopened at approximately 11:44 a.m. 

 

 

17. Authorize Chairman to sign Affidavit concerning the subject matter of the closed portion of 

the meeting 

County Attorney Nelson advised that two matters were discussed with no final action. 

Motion to authorize the Chairman to sign the Affidavit concerning the subject matter of 

the closed portion of the meeting. 

Motion made by Commissioner Foster, Seconded by Commissioner Brown. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Foster, 

Commissioner Wooten 

(Copy of affidavit made a part of the minutes on minute book page __________.) 

 

18. Action, if any, resulting from the Executive Session 

Motion to authorize the Chairman to execute the Settlement Agreement with Lauren and 

Josh Sprayberry and to enter into a Consent Order in the pending action and to recognize 

the submitted request for variance is granted as a matter of law. 

Motion made by Commissioner McElhenney, Seconded by Commissioner Wooten. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Foster, 

Commissioner Wooten 

(Copy of documents made a part of the minutes on minute book pages __________ to 

__________.) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

44



Draft Minutes Page 6 of 6  

March 3, 2023   

 

Closing 
19. Adjournment 

Motion to adjourn the meeting. 

Motion made by Commissioner McElhenney, Seconded by Commissioner Foster. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Foster, 

Commissioner Wooten 

 

 

Meeting adjourned at approximately 11:47 a.m. 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

Lynn Butterworth      B. W. “Bill” Sharp 

County Clerk       Chairman 

45



PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

Office of the County Clerk 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

706-485-5826 (main office) ◊ 706-485-1877 (direct line) ◊ 706-923-2345 (fax) 

lbutterworth@putnamcountyga.us ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 

 

 

 

 

The draft minutes of the March 3, 2023 Executive Session 

are available for Commissioner review in the Clerk’s 

office. 
 

46

mailto:lbutterworth@putnamcountyga.us
http://www.putnamcountyga.us/


PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

Office of the County Clerk 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

706-485-5826 (main office) ◊ 706-485-1877 (direct line) ◊ 706-923-2345 (fax) 

lbutterworth@putnamcountyga.us ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 
 

Approval of 2023 Alcohol Licenses 

 
The following alcohol license applications (which are available for review in 
the County Clerk’s office) have been approved by the Sheriff, Fire Marshal 

and/or Building Inspector, and Tax Commissioner and are ready for BOC 
approval: 
 

Individual 

Name 

Business Name Address License Type 

Prakash Patel 
Discount Liquor 

Store 

160 Pea Ridge 

Road 
Retail Beer/Wine/Liquor 

Hassan Ali 

Fallah 
Citgo Express 

1660 Madison 

Road 
Retail Beer/Wine 

Shannon J. 

Thompson 
Brush Creek, LLC 

1001 Lake 

Oconee 

Parkway, Suite 

300 

Retail Beer/Wine/Liquor 

Sandeep Dahiya 
Lakeside Bait and 

Tackle 

1065 

Milledgeville 

Highway 

Retail Beer/Wine 

Errol Brown 
The Chefs Delight 

Sports Bar & Grill 

113 Harmony 

Crossing, Suite 

8 

Beer/Wine/Liquor Pouring 

Jeremy Cash 
Lakehouse Gastro 

Pub 

1137 Lake 

Oconee Parkway 
Beer/Wine/Liquor Pouring 

 
 

47

mailto:lbutterworth@putnamcountyga.us
http://www.putnamcountyga.us/


File Attachments for Item:

9. Authorization for Chairman to sign Resolution for Hazard Mitigation Plan 2022-2027 (PCSO)

48



RESOLUTION – PUTNAM COUNTY, GEORGIA 

 

PUTNAM COUNTY HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN 2022-2027 
 

WHEREAS, Putnam County and its municipalities recognize that it is threatened by several 

different types of natural and man-made hazards that can result in loss of life, property loss, 

economic hardship and threats to public health and safety; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) has required that every 

county and municipality have a pre-disaster mitigation plan in place, and requires the adoption of 

such plans in order to receive funding from the Hazard Mitigation Grant Program; and 

 

WHEREAS, a Hazard Mitigation Plan is a community’s plan for evaluating hazards, identifying 

resources and capabilities, selecting appropriate actions, and developing and implementing the 

preferred mitigation actions to eliminate or reduce future damage in order to protect the health, 

safety and welfare of the residents in the community; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Putnam County 2022 Hazard Mitigation Plan has been prepared in accordance 

with FEMA requirements at 44 CFR 201.6; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Plan will be updated every five years; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Commissioners of Putnam 

County, Georgia, that: 

 

1) Putnam County, Georgia, has adopted the Putnam County 2022 Hazard Mitigation Plan; and 

 

2) It is intended that the Plan be a working document and is the first of many steps toward 

improving rational, long-range mitigation planning and budgeting for Putnam County and its 

municipalities.  

 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Commissioners of Putnam 

County, Georgia, in regular session this ______ day of __________________, 2023.  

 

 

 

_______________________________  _______________________________ 

Chairperson      County Clerk 

49



Putnam County Hazard Mitigation Plan Information 

Executive Summary 

Putnam County Emergency Management Agency completed the update of the 2018 Putnam 

County Hazard Mitigation Plan as required by the Federal Emergency Management Agency 

(FEMA). FEMA requires the Hazard Mitigation Plan be updated every five (5) years. This update 

involved 62 people who comprised the Putnam County Hazard Mitigation Plan Update Committee, 

which represented Putnam County and the City of Eatonton. The committee also included 

representatives from other organizations, such as Georgia Power, Brantley County Emergency 

Management Agency, and Putnam County Schools. Four Committee meetings were held to review 

the 2017 Hazard Mitigation Plan, Identify hazards facing Putnam County, perform a full risk 

assessment of those hazards, review previous mitigation strategies, and identify new mitigation 

strategies for Putnam County and Eatonton. The plan is currently at GEMA (Georgia Emergency 

Management Agency) for approval.  

Major Changes and Updates from the 2018 Putnam County Hazard Mitigation Plan 

Putnam County’s 2022 Hazard Mitigation Plan identified eight (8) natural hazards and six (6) 

technological/manmade hazards. The hazards identified were:  

Natural Technological/Manmade 

Severe Thunderstorms Hazardous Materials Incident 

Severe Winter Weather Dam Failure 

Tornadoes Transportation Incident 

Flooding Terrorism 

Drought Critical Infrastructure Failure 

Wildfires Emergent Infectious Diseases 

Tropical Cyclones 

Earthquake 

 

Drought, Tropical Cyclone, Terrorism, Critical Infrastructure, Transportation Incidents, and 

Emergent Infectious Diseases were new hazards identified as part of the Hazard Mitigation 

planning process for this update.  

The mitigation strategies are the most important aspect of the Putnam County Hazard Mitigation 

Plan. These strategies provide a blueprint for how Putnam County can decrease the impact of the 

identified hazards on the community and/or prevent the hazards from occurring.  

Overall, the Putnam County Hazard Mitigation Planning Committee identified forty-five (45) 

mitigation strategies – thirty-nine (39) for natural hazards and six (6) for technological hazards. 

This includes twenty-eight (28) new mitigation strategies. It should be noted that jurisdictions are 

not required to complete the mitigation strategies identified in the Putnam County Hazard 

Mitigation Plan. These strategies are expected to be guidelines to help jurisdictions make decisions 

when the opportunity arises to implement strategies to reduce the impact hazards may have on the 

community. Research has shown that for every $1 spent on mitigation projects, a community can 

save up to $6 in response and recovery costs when a disaster happens. As such, this document can 

be particularly helpful as justification of grant applications when attempting to secure grant monies 

50



Putnam County Hazard Mitigation Plan Information 

for projects identified in this plan. Some of the new mitigation strategies identified in the Putnam 

County Hazard Mitigation Plan include, but are not limited to: 

 Maintain NFIP Compliance through the appropriate application of ordinances and 

regulations 

 Install backup generators at all EMS and Fire stations in Putnam County and Eatonton 

 Implement a culvert replacement program for Putnam County 

 Purchase traffic barriers 

 Purchase mobile electronic signage 

 Promote public information regarding manmade hazards 

 Acquire equipment to respond to Hazardous Materials Spills 

 

 

51



File Attachments for Item:

10. Rescheduling or Cancellation of April 7, 2023 BOC Meeting due to Good Friday Holiday (staff-CC)

52



Regular Meetings are scheduled to be held in the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, Room 203, Eatonton, GA                                                                   
                                                                                                                                                              Approved by BOC 12-02-2022   

New times approved by ordinance change 02-03-2023                                       

PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

706-485-5826 ◊ 706-923-2345 fax ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 

 

2023 BOC MEETING SCHEDULE 

DATE DAY TIME 

January 6, 2023 Friday 9:00 am 

January 17, 2023 Tuesday 6:30 pm 

February 3, 2023 Friday 9:00 am 

February 21, 2023 Tuesday 6:00 pm 

March 3, 2023 Friday 10:00 am 

March 21, 2023 Tuesday 6:00 pm 

April 7, 2023* (TBD) 

*Good Friday Holiday 
Friday 10:00 am 

April 18, 2023 Tuesday 6:00 pm 

May 5, 2023 Friday 10:00 am 

May 16, 2023 Tuesday 6:00 pm 

June 2, 2023 Friday 10:00 am 

June 20, 2023 Tuesday 6:00 pm 

July 7, 2023 Friday 10:00 am 

July 18, 2023 Tuesday 6:00 pm 

August 4, 2023 Friday 10:00 am 

August 15, 2023 Tuesday 6:00 pm 

September 1, 2023 Friday 10:00 am 

September 19, 2023 Tuesday 6:00 pm 

October 6, 2023 Friday 10:00 am 

October 17, 2023 Tuesday 6:00 pm 

November 3, 2023 Friday 10:00 am 

November 21, 2023 Tuesday 6:00 pm 

December 1, 2023 Friday 10:00 am 

December 19, 2023 Tuesday 6:00 pm 

 

53



File Attachments for Item:

11. Request from Kevin Price/Liberty Marts LLC for Final Plat Subdivision Approval (staff-P&D)

54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



File Attachments for Item:

12. Request by Tri-County EMC for a Right-of-Way Permit for work on Dennis Station Road (staff-PW)

64



PUTNAM COUNTY

RIGHT-OF-WAY PERMIT APPLICATION

Date: _______________________________ 

CONTRACTOR NAME: ______________________________ TELEPHONE NO. ____________________ 

WORK TO BE DONE ON R.O.W. OF _________________ AND ____________________ 

DESCRIPTION OF WORK:  _______________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

DATE WORK TO BEGIN:  ________________________________________________ 

COMPLETION DATE:  ___________________________________________________ 

ANY CRANE/BOOM LIFTING DEVICE OR SCAFFORLDING TO BE USED ON SITE ____ YES ____ NO 

IF YES – PLEASE PROVIDE A SKETCH OF LOCATION OF EQUIPMENT & SAFETY MEASURES MUST BE SUBMITTED 
WITH THIS APPLICATION. 

WORK AREA UNDER THIS PERMIT IS APPROXIMATELY _____ LENGTH _____ WIDTH 

DOES YOUR BOND COVER PATCH WORK ______ YES ______ NO 

WILL THIS PERMIT REQUIRE BORING ______ YES ______ NO 

WILL YOU NEED TO CLOSE A ROAD ______ YES ______ NO 

WILL YOU NEED TO CUT A SIDEWALK ______ YES ______ NO 

Note:  Permittee shall comply in whole with this permit, which is issued in accordance with PUTNAM COUNTY 
CODES & ORDINANCES. 
The closing of any road requires a sketch to be submitted and alternate route to be approved by the Putnam 
County Public Works Department. 

Applicant: __________________________ Contact, If not Applicant ______________________________ 

Company Name: _____________________ 

Telephone: 

___________________ Fax: __________________ 

Mobile Phone: _________________ Address:  ____________________________________________________ 

City:  _________________________ State: _______________ Zip Code:   ________________ 

Official Use Only 

Permit No. ___________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________
OFFICE USE ONLY:
Payment Received:  $55.00  Date ____________________  Receipt # ______________________

3/15/23
TRI-COUNTY EMC 478-986-8182

DENNIS STATION RD

LINE ON R/W TO SERVE NEW HOUSE AT 641 DENNIS STATION RD
CLEAR R/W AND CONSTRUCT AN OVERHEAD POWERLINE AND FIBER OPTIC

WITHIN NEXT 30 DAYS
WITHIN NEXT 30 DAYS

300 30

JUSTIN STRICKLAND

TRI-COUNTY EMC 478-986-8182
478-951-1871 112 RECREATION RD

EATONTON GA 31024

✔

✔
✔
✔
✔

65



66



!(

!(

!(

GEORGIA POWER
PARCEL ID 082 051

PUTNAM COUNTY 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
PARCEL ID 082 051001

BOBBY WILDER
641 DENNIS STATION RD
PARCEL ID 082 059

PROPOSED POLE
PROPOSED OVERHEAD POWERLINE

EXISTING EMC POWERLINE

LEGEND

EXISTING EMC POLE

R/W TO BE CLEARED

N.
S. 

RA
IL

RO
AD

COUNTY R/W
 100'

30FT CLEARING WIDTH

30FT CLEARING WIDTH

Dennis Station Rd SW

¥

67



¥

GEORGIA POWER 
PARCEL ID 082 051

PUTNAM COUNT BOARD 
OF COMMISSIONERS 
PARCEL ID 082 051001

BOBBY WILDER 
PARCEL ID 082 059

68



Putnam County Public Works Department

115 S. Forrest Street

Eatonton, Georgia 31024

706-485-8817

Permit Number: 20230101

Job Location: 641 DENNIS STATION RD
City,State,Zip: EATONTON, GA 31024
APN: 082059
Right of Way: 80

 Permit Type: Right of Way Permit
Permit #: 20230101
Date Issued: 03/21/2023

Applicant Name: TRI-COUNTY EMC
Address: 112 RECREATION RD
City,State,Zip: EATONTON, GA 31024
Phone: 478-986-8182
Email: justins@tri-countyemc.com

 Owner: Putnam BOC
Address: 117 PUTNAM DR
City,State,Zip: EATONTON, GA 31024
Phone: 706-485-5826
Email: putnamboc@putnamcountyga.us

Fee Amount Payment Date Amount

Total Fee: $0.00 Total Paid: $0.00

Right-of-Way Permit

Job Description: CLEAR R/W AND CONSTRUCT AN OVERHEAD POWERLINE AND FIBER OPTIC LINE ON R/W
TO SERVE NEW HOUSE AT 641 DENNIS STATION RD

Putnam County hereby grants this permit to use the county right-of-way along the above-named road for the above stated
purpose.

Permittee agrees to abide by all of the rules and regulations of Putnam County during construction and at all times thereafter.

Permittee shall be responsible for placing the right-of-way in like condition as they found it.

Putnam County may cancel this permit at any time for any reason or no reason and shall not be liable for any damages or costs
which shall incur.

This permit does not grant any right, title, or interest in the county right-of-way.

   03/21/2023  
 County Official  Date  

69



File Attachments for Item:

13. Authorization for staff to schedule a Public Hearing on proposed changes to the Putnam County 

Code of Ordinances (Chapter 66 - Zoning) (staff-CA)

70



ORDINANCE  

 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 66 – ZONING  

OF THE CODE OF PUTNAM COUNTY, GEORGIA  

 

 WHEREAS, the Putnam County Board of Commissioner’s (“Board”) desires to 

amend the considerations and criteria for granting variances within Putnam County; 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF PUTNAM 

COUNTY, GEORGIA, HEREBY ORDAINS as follows:  

 

SECTION 1: That Chapter 66, Section 66-157 – Planning and zoning commission, 

scope of authority. shall be amended to read as follows: 

 

(a) Initiation. All planning and zoning issues, including those relative to the official 

zoning maps, shall be reviewed by the planning and zoning commission. 

Amendments to the official zoning maps may only be made by the board of 

commissioners. 

 

(b) Conditional use permits. If a use is not permitted in any zoning district, the planning 

and zoning commission may hear and recommend a conditional use permit 

approval application as submitted according to the rezoning process. In granting 

such a conditional use permit, the planning and zoning commission may attach 

thereto such conditions regarding the location, character and other features of the 

proposed building, structure or use as it may deem advisable so that the purpose of 

this chapter will be served, public safety and welfare secured, and substantial justice 

done. Conditional use permits shall be issued to the applicant solely, are not 

transferrable, and shall extinguish upon cessation of such activity for a period of 12 

months. Conditional uses permits may be renewed by application by successive 

owners or operators. 

 

(c) Variances. The planning and zoning commission shall hear applications for 

variances from the development standards and performance standards of this 

chapter. All variance approval shall be contiguous with the property. Such 

variances may be granted only:  

 

(1) Variances may be granted by the planning and zoning commission only 

upon making all of the following factual findings: 

 

a. Where by reason of exceptional narrowness, shallowness or shape 

of a specific piece of property, which at the time of adoption of this 

chapter, was a lot or plat of record; or There are extraordinary and 

exceptional conditions pertaining to the particular piece of property 

in question because of its size, shape, or topography; 

 

71



b. Where by reason of exceptional topographic conditions to include 

floodplains or other extraordinary or exceptional conditions of a 

piece of property, strict application of the development requirements 

of this chapter would result in practical difficulties to, and undue 

hardship upon the owner of this property, which difficulty or 

hardship is not the result of acts of the applicant; and further 

provided that this relief may be granted without substantially 

impairing the intent and purpose of this chapter and is not contrary 

to the public welfare. The application of this Chapter to this 

particular piece of property would create an unnecessary hardship; 

 

c. The identified extraordinary and exceptional conditions and 

unnecessary hardship in application identified in subsections (a) and 

(b) were not caused by or the result of acts or omissions of the 

applicant; 

 

d. The variance proposed is the minimum variance, which makes 

possible the reasonable use of the property; 

 

e. Such conditions are peculiar to the particular piece of property 

involved; and 

 

f. Relief, if granted would not cause substantial detriment to the public 

good or impair the purposes and intent of this Chapter. 

 

(2) In granting a variance, the planning and zoning commission may attach 

thereto such conditions regarding the location, character and other features 

of the proposed building, structure or use as it may deem advisable so that 

the purpose of this chapter will be served, public safety and welfare secured, 

and substantial justice done. However, the planning and zoning commission 

shall not be authorized to grant a density variance or a use variance to permit 

a density or use in a district in which the density or use is otherwise 

prohibited. The planning and zoning commission shall not be authorized to 

grant a variance to development standards set forth in a statement of zoning 

conditions accompanying a conditional zoning. 

 

(3) No variance may be granted for a reduction in minimum lot size. 

 

(d) Appeals of administrative decision. 

 

(1) Who may seek an appeal. Any person, firm or officer, department, board or 

agency directly affected by the decision of the planning and development 

department director may bring an appeal before the planning and zoning 

commissioners. Such request shall be made within ten days following 

notification of the decision from which an appeal is taken by filing with the 

director a notice of appeal and specifying the grounds thereof. The director 

72



shall forthwith transmit to the planning and zoning commission all papers 

constituting the record upon which the action appealed from was taken. 

 

(2) Extent of commission power. The planning and zoning commission may, in 

conformity with this chapter, reverse or affirm, wholly or partly, or may 

modify the order, requirement, decision or determination appealed. 

 

(3) Effect of appeal. An appeal waiting for a hearing shall not stay the 

effectiveness of the permit or decision being challenged. However, if the 

owner of property who has received the permit, variance or favorable 

interpretation proceeds with development at the property owner's own risk 

that such development may be halted if the appeal is successful. 

 

SECTION 2: That Chapter 66, Section 66-158 – Planning and zoning commission, 

scope of authority. shall be amended to read as follows: 

 

(a) Initiation. This chapter, including the official zoning maps, may be amended by 

the board of commissioners on its own motion or by private petition or on 

recommendation of the planning and zoning commission. 

 

(b) Variances. The board of commissioners shall hear and decide on applications for 

variances from the development standards or performance standards of this 

chapter only on appeal of the decision of the planning and zoning commission. 

Such variances may be granted only:  

 

(1) In considering an appeal from the decision of the planning and zoning 

commission, the board of commissioners may grant a variance only upon 

making the factual findings identified in Sec 66-157(c)(1) through (f). 

 

(1) Where by reason of exceptional narrowness, shallowness or shape of a 

specific piece of property, which at the time of adoption of this chapter, 

was a lot or plat of record; or 

 

(2) Where, by reason of exceptional topographic conditions or other 

extraordinary or exceptional conditions of a piece of property, the strict 

application of the development requirements of this chapter would result 

in practical difficulties to, and undue hardship upon, the owner of this 

property, which difficulty or hardship is not the result of acts of the 

applicant; and further provided that this relief may be granted without 

substantially impairing the intent and purpose of this chapter and is not 

contrary to the public welfare. 

 

(2) In granting a variance, the board of commissioners may attach thereto 

such conditions regarding the location, character and other features of the 

proposed building, structure or use as it may deem advisable so that the 

purpose of this chapter will be served, public safety and welfare secured, 

73



and substantial justice done. The board of commissioners is authorized to 

grant a density variance or a use variance to permit a density or use in a 

district where otherwise prohibited. 

 

(3) No variance may be granted for a reduction in minimum lot size. 

 

(c) Appeals of administrative decision. 

 

(2) Who may seek an appeal. Any person, firm or officer, department, board 

or agency directly affected by the decision of the planning and zoning 

commission may bring an appeal before the board of commissioners. Such 

request shall be made within ten days following notification of the 

decision from which an appeal is taken by filing with the director a notice 

of appeal and specifying the grounds thereof. The director shall forthwith 

transmit to the board of commissioners all papers constituting the record 

upon which the action appealed from was taken. 

 

(3) Decisions subject to appeal. Actions of the planning and zoning 

commission subject to appeal are limited to the following administrative 

decisions: 

 

a. Grant or denial of variance requests; and/or 

 

b. Interpretation of the provisions of chapter 66 as appealed to the 

planning and zoning commission pursuant to section 66-157(d). 

 

(4) Extent of commission power. The board of commissioners may, in 

conformity with this chapter, reverse or affirm, wholly or partly, or may 

modify the order, requirement, decision or determination appealed. 

 

(5) Effect of appeal. An appeal waiting for a hearing shall not stay the 

effectiveness of the permit or decision being challenged. However, if the 

owner of property who has received the permit, variance or favorable 

interpretation proceeds with development at the property owner's own risk 

that such development may be halted if the appeal is successful. 

 

SECTION 3: That any ordinances or resolutions as adopted by this Board which are in 

conflict with these ordinances are hereby repealed and rendered ineffective. 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this ordinance has been duly adopted by the governing 

authority of Putnam County, Georgia on the ___ day of ___________, 2023.  

 

 

  

      _________________________ 

      Chairman 

74

https://library.municode.com/ga/putnam_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH66ZO
https://library.municode.com/ga/putnam_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH66ZO_ARTIVADEN_DIV2SCAUGEPR_S66-157PLZOCOSCAU


 

CERTIFICATION 

 

 I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of an original ordinance 

adopted by the Putnam County Board of Commissioners on the ____ day of 

______________, 2023. 

 

 In witness whereof, I hereunto set my hand and affix the seal of Putnam County, 

this ____day of _______________, 2023. 

 

 

      _________________________ 

      County Clerk 

 

[Affix Seal] 

 

 

 

 

75



File Attachments for Item:

15. Approval of 2023 LMIG Projects (staff-CM)

76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87


	Top
	Item #6.	2023-03-21 BOC Rezoning-West
	West-McDonald Info
	West-McDonald Withdraw Without Prejudice
	West-McDonald Rezoning Application_Redacted
	West-McDonald 12-1-22 Map
	West-McDonald 105016LV
	West-McDonald Future Land Use 105 016

	Item #8.	2023-03-21 BOC Consent Agenda
	DRAFT 03-03-2023 BOC Minutes
	Executive Session Minutes Agenda Item
	Agenda Item for Alcohol Licenses2

	Item #9.	2023-03-21 BOC Hazard Mitigation Resolution
	Putnam County - Resolution - County (Unsigned)
	Putnam County - Plan Executive Summary

	Item #10.	2023-03-21 BOC 4-7-23 Meeting
	2023 BOC Meeting Schedule revised 020323

	Item #11.	2023-03-21 BOC Final Plat-Meadowcrest
	Final Plat Application-Kevin Price-Meadowcrest Phase II

	Item #12.	2023-03-21 BOC ROW Dennis Station
	641 Dennis Station Rd RW Permit Package
	Right-of-Way+Permit16437538

	Item #13.	2023-03-21 BOC Code Change
	230313 Variance Ordinance Amendment16

	Item #15.	2023-03-21 BOC LMIG
	LMIG 2023 Estimates

	Bottom

